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To the shareholders of
Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment
- KPSC (“Parent Company ”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comptise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our respomnsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 6.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the possible material
effects of uncertainty with respect to the Group’s exposure in Lebanon. Our opinion is not modified in res pect
of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the curtent year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at FVIPL and FVTOCI

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL) and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) include significant unquoted investments. Due to their unique
structure and terms, the valuation of these instruments is based either on external independent valuations or
on entty-developed internal models. Therefore, there is significant measurement uncertainty involved in
valuations. As a result, the valuations of these instruments was significant to our audit. We have, therefore,
spent significant audit efforts in assessing the appropriateness of the valuations and underlying assumptions.
The Group’s disclosures about its financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI are included in Notes 14, 17 and
35.2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included agreeing carrying value of the unquoted investments to the Group’s internal or
external valuations prepared using valuation techniques, assessing and challenging the appropriateness of
estimates, assumptions and valuation methodology and obtained supporting documentation and explanations
to corroborate the valuations.

Equity Method of Accounting

The Group has interests in number of associates which are significant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements which are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
Group’s interests in the associates are initially stated at cost, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any impairment. The complexity of the
Group’s control environment and our ability as Group’s auditor to obtain an appropriate level of understanding
of these entities including any related party transactions. Due to these factors and the significance of the
investment in associates to the Group’s consolidated financial statements we consider this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, determining the nature and extent of audit procedures to be
carried out for associates and selecting significant associates based on the size and/or risk profile of these
entities. During our audit we communicated with the component auditors. We also provided instructions to
the component auditors covering the significant areas and risks to be addressed including the identification of
related parties and transactions. Furthermore, we evaluated the Group’s methodology and testing of the key
assumptions used by the Group in determining the associates’ recoverable amount based on value-in-use. We
also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in Notes 4.13 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our Auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our Auditor’s
report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our Auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this Auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a2 material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholdets of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, as adopted for use in the State of Kuwait, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Arzan Financial Group for Financing
and Investment - KPSC (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we 1dentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicared with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matrers. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s board of
directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that
we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the
consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1 of
2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law, the Executive Regulations, or of the Parent
Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occutred during the
yeat ended 31 December 2019 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the
Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not
become aware of any material violations of the provisions of Law 7 of 2010, as amended, relating to the Capiral
Markets Authority and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2019 that might have had a
material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware, of any material violations
of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and
the organisation of the banking business, and its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2019
that might have had a materal effect on the business or financial position of the Parent Company.

it

wha

Anwar Y. Al-Qatami, F.C.C.A.
(Licence No. 50-A)
of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

20 April 2020

Kuwait



frzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment —- KPSC
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2019 2018
KD KD
Income
Income from instalment credit debtors 7 1,585,269 1,685,184
Revenue from contracts with customers 8 2,963,334 1,656,324
Realised profit from instalment sales 245,158 53,219
Rental income 149,737 153,437
Interest income 955,584 974,485
Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 845,937 391,004
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss 3,256,259 953,926
Share of results of associates 18 1,973,274 206,489
Dividend income 11 2,259,890 2,255,153
Loss on sale of properties held for trading - (18,119)
Reversal of provision for properties held for trading - 65,156
Gain/(loss) on foreign currency exchange 60,096 (28,446)
Other income 222,334 298,189

14,526,872 8,657,001
Expenses and other charges
Staff costs (3,062,993) (2,649,208)
General and administrative expenses (1,705,311) (1,624,024)
Finance costs 9 (2,111,098) (1,580,541)
Depreciation 20& 21 (438,693) (418,828)
(Provision)/reversal of provision for instalment credit debtors 13 (2,491,994) 216,111
Impairment of investment in real estate under development 19 - (67,080)
Provision for properties held for trading 16 (117,140) -
Impairment of financial assets at FVTOCI 17 (1,848,304) -
Provision for doubtful debts 15 (211,328) (209,392)
Provision of credit losses for restricted cash and cash equivalents 12.2 (1,000,000) -

(12,986,861) (6,332,962)
Profit for the year before provisions for contribution to Kuwait

Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS),

National Labour Support Tax (NLST) 1,540,011 2,324,039
Provision for KFAS - (6,746)
Provision for NLST - (30,529)
Profit for the year 1,540,011 2,286,764
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent Company 1,095,948 2,533,530
Non-controlling interests 444,063 (246,766)
Profit for the year 1,540,011 2,286,764
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the

shareholders of the Parent Company (Fils) 10 1.375 3.180

The notes set ont on pages 12 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Arzan Financial Group for Financing and investment - KPSC
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Profit for the year 1,540,011 2,286,764
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of
profit or loss:
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
- Net change in fair value arising during the year (5,783,928) (10,810,454)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of profit
or loss:

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
- Net change in fair value arising during the year 216,086 45 894
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations 43,435 112,177
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates (121,278) (201,285)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (5,645,685) (10,853,668)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (4,105,674) (8,566,904)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company (4,435,575) (8,176,280)
Non-controlling interests 329,901 (390,624)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (4,105,674) (8,566,904)

The notes set out on pages 12 1o 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Arzan Financial Group for Financing and investment - KPSC
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

24

31 December 2019

Consolidated statement of financial position

|

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2019 2018
KD KD

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12.1 7,898,924 10,374,053
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 12.2 2,677,267 -
Instalment credit debtors 13 4,128,653 7,904,355
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 14,504,859 9,847,774
Accounts receivable and other assets 15 4,968,961 4,191,835
Properties held for trading 16 906,140 1,023,280
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income 17 66,501,483 76,596,937
Investment in associates 18 44,631,874 27,476,807
Investment in real estate under development 19 5,313,674 5,050,140
Investment properties 20 1,596,464 1,655,205
Property and equipment 21 2,639,614 2,820,274
Total assets 155,667,913 146,940,660
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 22 1,930,923 4,019,970
Accounts payable and other liabilities 23 13,671,885 7,049,378
Term loans 24 17,974,500 17,880,000
Murabaha payables 25 12,128,670 4,469,119
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 1,481,816 1,369,578
Total liabilities 47,187,794 34,788,045
Equity
Share capital 26 80,288,256 80,288,256
Share premium 26 23,803,273 23,803,273
Treasury shares 27 (559,232) (659,232)
Legal reserve 28 503,767 503,767
Voluntary reserve 28 503,767 503,767
Fareign currency translation reserve (297,691) (318,402)
Fair value reserve (4,299,739) (2,436,904)
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings (1,291,103) 1,461,292
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the

Parent Company 98,651,298 103,245,817
Non-controlling interests 9,828,821 8,908,798
Total equity 108,480,119 112,152,615

155,667,913 146,940,660

Total liabilities and equity

™y

Jassem Hias ifa

Vice chairman and CEQ

The notes set out on pages 12 1o 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bvzan Financial Sroup for Financing and Investmaent - KESK 4
and its Subsidiaries
Gonsolidateod Financial Statoments
31 December ZMMS
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec,
Notes 2019 2018
KD KD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 1,540,011 2,286,764
Adjustments:

Interest income {956,584) (674,485)
Dividend incoma 11 (2,259,890} {2.255,153)
Impairment of investment in real estate under development 19 - 67,080
Lass on sate of properties held for {rading - 18,119
Provision {reversal} of provision for properties held for trading 18 117,140 (65,1586)
Share of results of associates 18 (1,873,274) (206,489)
Preovisionf(reversal) of provision for instalment credit debtors 13 2,491,994 (216,111}
Impairment of financial assets at FVTOC! 1,848,304 -
Provision for doubiful debis 15 211,328 209,392
Finance costs 9 2,111,098 1,580,541
Depreciation 20827 438,693 418,828
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 178,976 239,318
Frovision of credit josses for restricted cash and cash equivalents i2.2 1,000,000 -

4,748,796 1,102,648

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Instalment credit debtors 1,283,707 (500,173)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {4,657,085) 749,649
Accounts receivable and other assets (544,103) (2,082 1186)
Accounts payable and ather liabilities 6,635,918 {166,425}
Employees' end of service benefits paid {86,737) {(45,793)
Net cash from/{used in} operating activities 7,400,496 (942,210}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equiprment 21 {183,781} (153,229)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI {17,936,865) {3,543,385)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FYTOCI 4,569,474 2,874,657
Proceeds from sale of properiies held for trading - 351,623
Additions on investments in real estate under deveiopment 19 {133,828) (997,141)
Restricted cash and cash gquivalenis 12 (3,577,267 -
Dividend income received 2,259,890 2,255 153
Dividend from associates 18 743,629 721,968
Interest income received 511,234 388,275
Net cash {used in}/from investing activities (13,757,514) 1,898,911

The notes set ont on pages 12 to 67 form an integral part of these vonsolidated financial tatements.



Brzan Financial Group for Finaocing and Investment - KPSC
and s Subsidiaries

Cansolidated Floancial $tatements

31 Becentber 2019

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

11

Year ended Year ended
M Dec. 31 Dec.
Notes 2019 2018
KD KD

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net movement in term loans 95,500 1,600,000
Net movement in murabaha payable 7,562,774 (797 948}
Finance costs paid (2,124,508) 1,483,356}
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {264,067) -
Change in ownership of subsidiary 697,245 3,576,900
Net cash from financing activities 6,066,547 2,785,586
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {290,071) 3,752,297
Foreign currency adjustments {96,011) 22270
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12 6,254,083 2,579,516
Cash and cash equivaients at end of the year 12 5,868,001 6,354,083
Non-cash transactions:

Accounts receivable and other assets (673,062) (3,204,643)
Due from/to related parties - 713,848
Accounts payables and other lighilities (72,099} 3,576,900
Instalment credH debtors - {1,277 .476)
Purchase of financial assets at FYTQCG] . 2,917,958
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 2,691,951

The notes set 0wl on pages 12 1o 67 farm an imtegral part of these cousalidated financial siatenrents.



fArzan Financial Group for Financing and thvestment — MBSE 12
and s Jubsidiaries

Consaligated Financial Statements

31 Becember 2099

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment — KPSC (the “Parent Company™) was incorporated in
Kuwait on 15 April 1980 in accordance with the Companies Law under the name of Inteenational Transport
Equipment Company — KSC {Closcd), On 14 December 1996 an extraordinary general assembly resolved to
change the name of the Parent Company to International Murabaha Company — KSC (Closed). Later, on 24
April 2002 an extraordinary general assembly resolved to change the name of the Parent Company to
International Finance Company — KPSC and to expand its permitted activities.

The extraordinary general assembly held on 24 July 2013 apptroved to change the name of the Parent Company
from Intecnational Finance Company — KSCC to Arzan Financial Group for Financing and Investment - IKPSC
which has been registered in the commercial register under No. 29629 on 11 November 2013,

The Parent Company is tisted on the Kuwait Boutsa and is governed under the dicectives of the Centeal Bank
af Kuwait and the Capital Markets Authority.

The Group comprises the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (togethet referred as “the Group™). The details
of the subsidiaries are described in note 6.

The Parent Company’s abjectives are as follows:
pany ]

- Invest in various cconomic sectors through the incorporation or participation in the incorporation of
various companies or institutions practicing similar or complementary activities to the company’s
objectives for its account and for the account of third parties inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Manage local or foreign various companies and institutions and marker the investment services and
products owned by them or by third parties inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Own and acquire the right of disposal of whatever it deems necessary thereto of movable and
immovable property or any parts thereof ot any franchising rights the corapany deems they are
necessary or appropriate to the nature of its activity or to the development of its funds, excluding
trading in goods for its account,

- Conducr ali business related to securities trading for its account and fot the account of third parties
inside ot outside the State of Kuwait, including sale, purchase and matketing of secutitics of shares and
sukuks and other securities issued by local and foreign government and private companies, institutions
and bodies and practice the related financial mediation and brokerage activitics,

- Manage the funds of individuals and local or foreign public and private companies, insttutions and
bodies and invest these funds in various economic sectors theongh investment and real estate portfolios
inside or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Provide economic advice related to investment and hold courses, issue brochures of various
investment activities for individuals, local and foreign companies and institutions.

- Prepare and provide technical, economic and assessment studies and consultations and prepare
feasibility studies for various investment activities and other studies, examining the technical, financial
and administeative aspects related to these activities for its account or for the account of third parties
inside or outside the State of Kuwait.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Incorporation and activities (continued)

- Establish and manage the collective investment systems and local and foreign investment funds of all
kinds and contribute to their establishiment for the account of the company and for the account of
third parties in accordance with the regulating laws, rules and conditions specified by the competent
regulatory authorities; put its stakes or units to subscription so that the company’s contributions to the
share capital of the collective investment system or the investment fund shall not be less than the
minimum limit specified by the regulatory authorities; scll or purchase stakes or units in the local or
foreign collective investment systems or investment funds for its account and for the account of third
parties or market same, provided the necessary approvals are obtained from the competent regulatory
authorities; act as investment custodian, investment monitor and investment advisor in general for the
investment funds inside or outside the State of Kuwait in accordance with the regulating Jaws.

- Invest funds for its account and for the account of third parties in the various aspects of investment
inside or outside the State of Kuwait and acquire movable and immovable assets.

- Actas the issuance manager for the securities issued by the local and foreign government and private
companies, institutions and bodies and act as the subscription agent, listing adviser, investment
custodian and monitor, including publications management and commitments of subscription
operations management, receiving applications and covering subseription thereto.

= Perform all advisory services that help develop and strengthen the ability of financial and monctary
market in the State of Kuwait and meet its requirements within the limits of the law and the decisions
or instructions issued by the competent regulatory authorities (after obtaining the necessary approvals
from those authorities), provided this does not tesult in granting funding by the company in any way.

- Mediate in financing opetations, structure and manage the financing arrangements of the local and
international companies, institutions, bodies and projects in the various economic sectots in
accordance with the rules and conditions specified by the competent regulatory autheorities.

- Carry out all the works related to the activities for the arrangement and management of consolidation,
acquisition and separation operations for the local and foreign government and private companies,
institutions and bodies.

- Trade in transportation means and related heavy equipment,

- Finance the purchases of capital goods, durable and non-durable goods.

- Lease capital and durable goods.

-~ Grant short and medium term loans to natural and judicial persons.

- Perform real estate investment operations aiming at the management and development of residential
lands and building of residential and commetcial units and complexes for the purpose of selling them
i cash or on instaliments or leasing same.

- Manage 2ll kinds of financial portfolios, invest and develop funds by employing them locally and
tnternationally for the account of the company or for the account of its clients, in addition to lending
and borrowing operations.

- Mediate in the operations of lending, borrowing, brokerage and warrantees against commission ot pay.

- Pinance and mediate in international and local trade operations.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Incorporation and activities (continued)

- Manage and ceeate mutual investment funds according o the law and after approval by the competent
authorities,

- Mediate in investment in the international instruments and securities.

- Investin real estate, industrial and agricultural sectors and other economic sectors, whether directly ox
through contribution to the incorporation of specialized companies or purchase of the shares of these
companies.

- Sell and purchase foreign currencies and trade in precious metals only for the account of the company,

- Conduct researches and studies for private and public real estate projects and for the employment of
fuads for its acconnt ot for the account of third parties.

- Trade in securities such as shares and investment certificates and the like,

The Parent Company may have an interest or participate in any aspect with the companies, instimtions and
bodies performing similar works or which might assist it in the achievement of its objectives in Kuwait o
abroad. The company may also open branches inside and outside the State of Kuwait in such a way that does
not conteadict with the company’s law and the instructions of the competent regulatory anthotities,

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is PO Box 26442, Safat 13125, State of Kuwait.

The Parent Company’s board of disectors approved these consolidated financial statements for issue on
........ crevrcecnnnn o The general assembly of the Parent Company’s sharcholders has the power to amend
these consolidated financial statements after issuance.

2 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™) of the
IASB, as modified for use by the Governiment of Kuwait for financial scrvices institutions regulated by the
Central Bank of Kuwait (“CBK”). The modification requires adoption of all IFRSs for such instinstions, except
for the IFRS 9 requirements for measurement of estimated credit losses (“BCL”) for credit facilities, The CBK
requires to measure the provision for credit losses at the higher of provision calculated under IFRS 9 in
accordance with the CBK guidelines, and the provision required by the prudentat regulations of the CBK.

3 Changes in accounting policies

31 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual petiods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
which have been adopted by the Group. Information on these new seandards is presented below:

Standard or Inferprotation Effective for annual periods beginning
IFRS 16 Lenses 1 January 2019
IAS 28 - Amendments 1 January 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
3l New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaced 1AS 17 and the related Interpretations. IFRS 16 introduced new and amended requirements
with respect to accounting for leases. As a resul, lessee accounting is now significantly different and removes
distinction between finance and operating leases. It now requires recognition of a right-of-use assct and lease
liabflity at commencement date [or all leases, except for short term leases and low value leases. However, the
aceounting by lessor has largely remained unchanged.

Transition ar date of initial application:

On rransition, For leases previously accounted for as operating leases management has assessed that these leases
that fall under the definition of IFRS 16 have a remaining lease tesin of less than 12 months and thercfore, the
Group has clected the optional exemption to not recognise right-of-use assets but o account for the Jease
expense on 2 straight-line basis over the temaining lease terimn.

The new accounting policy for leases is detailed in Note 4.25.

IAS 28 - Amnendments

The amendments to IAS 28 clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Finanetal Instruments, including its impaizment
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate ot joint venture that form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. These include long-tesin interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in an associate or joint venture.

"The adopaon of this amendment did not result in any sipnificant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015.2017 Cycle

Aniendments to IFRS 3 and IFRS 11 - Clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation it remeasnres previously held interests in that business, The amendments to TFRS 11 clarify that when
an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the catity does not remeasuee previously
held interests in that business.

[45 72 - The amendments clarify that the requirements in the former paragraph 52B (to recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends where the transactions or events that generated distributable profits arc
recognised) apply to all income tax consequences of dividends by moving the paragraph away from patagraph
52A that only deals with situations whete there are diffetent tax rates for distributed and undistributed profits.

145 23 - The amendments clarify that if any specific borcowing remains outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, that boreowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when
caleulating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings

The adoption of these amendments did not tesult in any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
tinancial statements,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

3.2 IASD Standards issned but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Group.

Management andeipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements is provided below, Certain other new standatds and interpretations have been issued but
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation = f%eetive for annual periody beginning
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Coniribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments No stated date

IFRS 3 - Amendments 1 january 2020

IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Amendments 1 January 2020

IFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets berween and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venrure - Amendments
The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clatify the teeatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate
or joint venture, as follows:
= require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses asising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)
e requiee the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.c. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the vnrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture.

These requitements apply tegardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution
of assets occurs by an investor wansferring shares in 2 subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of
control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themsedves.

IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. However, early
implementation is allowed. Management does not anticipates that the application of these amendments may
have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future should such transactions arise.

IFRS 3 = Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations are changes to Appendix A Defined terms, the application

guidance, and the illustrative examples of IFRS 3 only with respect to Definition of Business. The amendments:

* clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an inpul and a substantive process that together significantly conteibute to the ability to create outputs;

* narrow the definitions of 2 business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services provided to
customers and by removing the geference to an ability to reduce costs;

e add guidance and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantive process has been
acquired,;
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
32 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 3 - Amendments (continued)

* remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of teplacing any missing inputs ot
processes and continuing to produce outputs; and

* add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the futore will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Amendments

The amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 clarify the definition of ‘material” and align the definition used in the
Conceptual Framework and the standards. The threshold for matetiality influencing users has been changed
from ‘could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’,

Management does not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

4 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated Hnancial statements are
set out below.

4.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaid Dinars (“KI2) which is the functional
currency of the Parent Company and are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for cestain
financial assets at fair vahue through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income that are measured at fair value.

‘The Group has elected to present the “consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” in two statements: the “consolidated statement of profit or loss” and “consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income™,

4.2 Basis of consolidation

The Parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, ot has rights, to vadable returns from its involvement with the
subsidiary and has the abdity to affect those retuens through its power over the subsidiary. The financial
statements of the subsidiarics are prepared for reporting dates which are typically not more than three months
from that of the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments ate made for the effect of
any significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of the Parent
Compaay’s financial staternents.

All transactions and balances between Group companies ate eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-Group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the underdying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.2 Basis of consclidation {continued)
Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of duting the year are
recognised from the cffective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group, The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests.

When a controlling interest in the subsidiaries is disposed of, the difference between the selling price and the
net asset value plus cumulative translation difference and goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or oss.

4.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisiion method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
vahies of assets transferred, liabilitics incurred and the equaty interests issued by the Group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or liability atising from a contingent considetation arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-contrelling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identiftable net assets.

It the business combination js achieved in stages, the acquisition date (aix value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements priot to the acquisition.
Assets acquired and liabilitics assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and Jiabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the conteactual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquitee.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculared as the excess of the
sum of aj fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and €) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interestin the acquiree, over the acquisition-
date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum catculated
above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in the consolidated statement of profic
or loss immediately.

4.4 Goodwilt
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately tecognised. Goodwill is careied at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

4.5 Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfets control of 2 product or service to a customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)

4.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
The Group follows a 5-step process:

1 Identifying the contract with a customer

2 Identifying the performance obligations

3 Determining the transaction price

4 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5 Recognising revenue when/as petformance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various performance obligations based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. The tansaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at 4 point in tme or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performaince
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customets,

‘The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance
obligations and reports these amounts, if any, as other liabilities in the statement of financial position. Similasly,
if the Group satsfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Group recognises either
a contract asset or a receivable, if any, in it statement of financial position, depending on whether something
other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due,

4.51 Asser management services

Asset management fees is variable consideration based on the net assets value of portfolios at pre-agreed rates
in accordance with the respective contracts with customers for the supervision and managing portfolios” assets,
safe custody of the assets and conducting buy/sell transactions for the customers,

4.5.2  Fees from advisoty services

Fees arising for rendering specific advisoty services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement transactions
for a third party or arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party
are recognised on completion of the undetlying transaction,

4.6 Interest on instalment credit loans

Interest on instalment credit facilities is caleulated at the time of a contract with the customer. The customer
tepays the total amount due (including interest) by equal instalments over the petiod of the conteact. The
interest is allocated over the life of the agrecment using the “effective interest” method. Interest relating to
outstanding instalments is considered as deferred income and is included in the conselidated statement of
financial position as a deduction from instalment credit debtoss.

4.7 Realised profit from instalment sales

Profit margin from instalment sales is calculated at the time of a contract with the customer. The customer
tepays the total amount due (including profit margin by equal instalments over the period of the contract. The
profit margin s allocated over the life of the agreement using the “fixed instalment” method. Profit margin
refating to outstanding instalments is considered as deferted income and is included in the statement of financial
position as a deduction from instalment recetvables.

4.8 Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method,

4.9 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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4 Significant accounting policies {(continued)

410 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or
at the date of their origin.

411  Finance costs
Finance costs are recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstanding balance of
borrowing payable and applicable interest rate.

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended usc or sale are capitalised as pait of the cost of that
asset, Capitalisation of finance costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended wse or sale ate complete. Other finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred,

4,12 Taxation

4.12.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is caleulated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resclutions No. 24 of
2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company. As per
lase, income [rom associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to
NLST have to be deducted from the profit for the year.

4.12.2 Buwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

"The contribution to KIFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent Company in accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of
Directors’ resolution, which states that income from associates and subsidiaries, Board of Directors’
remuneration, transfer to statutory reseeve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the
contribution,

4,123 Zakar

Conuibution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group attibutable to the sharcholders of the
Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No. 58/2007 effective (rom 10
December 2007,

Under the NLST and Zakat regulations, no carry forward of losses to the fubire years or any carry back to prior
years is permitted.

4.12.4 Income rax
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise thase obtigations to, or claims {rom, tax authorities
velating to the current or prior reparting petiod, that are unpaid at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is calculated using the liability method on temporaty differences. Deferred tax is generally
provided on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred
tax 18, however, neither provided on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset
oz liability unless the related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit.

In addition, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits ave assessed for
recognition as defetred tax assets,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are cxpected to apply to
their respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the repotting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full. Deferred tax assets are recognised.
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)

413 Segment reporting

The Group has four operating segments: instalment credit, investments, financial brokerage and real estate, In
identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s setvice lines representing its
main products and services. Each of thesc operating segments is managed scparately as each requires different
approaches and other rescurces, All inter-segment transfers are catried out at arm’s length prices.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its financial
statements. In addition, assets or labilities which aze not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment ate not allocated to a segment.

414  Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint controf over those policies.

The Group’s investment in associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting, i.e. on the
statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associate, less any impairment and the consolidated staterment of profit ot loss reflects the Group’s share
of the results of operations of associate, '

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s shate of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.

The goodwill is included within the cartying amount of the investment and is assessed for impaitment as pact
of that investment. Any excess of the Parent Company’s shate of the net fair value of the identifiable asscts,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Distributions received from the associate reduce the catrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the
carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the Group’s shate in the associate arising from changes
in the associate’s equity. Changes in the Group’s share in associate’s equity are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When the Group’s shate of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions with associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s share in the associate.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment in the asset
rransfered.

An assessment for impairment of investment in associates is performed when there is an indication that the
assct has been impaired, or that impairment losses recognised in prior years no longer exist.

The associate’s financial statements are prepared either to the Parent Company’s reporting date or to a date not
earlier than three months of the Parent Company’s reporting date using consistent accounting policies. Where
practicable, adjustments are made for the effect of significant transactions or other events that occurred
between the reporting date of the associates and the Parent Company’s reporting date.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measurcs and recognises any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.15 Financial instruments

4.15.1 Recognition, inftial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by directly attributable
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at
fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below.

A financial asset (or, whetre applicable a part of financial asset or part of Group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised whea:

v rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass througly’ arrangement and either

(a}  the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewatds of the asset or
(b)  the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially 2ll risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of cwnership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset,

A financial tiability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischazged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different rerms,
or the terms of an existing liability ate substantally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Lability, and the difference in the respective
catrying amounts is recognised in consolidated statement of profir or loss.

4.15.2 Classification of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon
initial recognition:

* financial assets at amortised cost
* financial assets at fair value theough other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification is determined by both:

* the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset
* the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

* the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other

comprehensive income if certain critetia are met and

* the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCT critesia as
measured at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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4q Significant accounting policies (continued)
415  Financial instruments (continued)

4.15.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets

. Financial assets ar amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

* they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise of the following:

- Cail and carh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and other financial instimtions and
short tesm deposits due within three months which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Any
cash and cash equivalents which are restricted are shown separately.

- Instatment credit debiory

Instalment credit debtors are stated in the consolidated firancial position at amortised cost, net of specific and
general provisions. Specific provisions are made to reduce impaired receivables to their estimated recoverable
amount and general provisions are made at a rate of 1% on instalment credit debtors for which no specific
provisions were made, to provide for losses known from expetience to exist, but not yet specifically identifiable,
in accordance with the Central Bank of Kuwait instructions in that respect. The recoverable amounts are based
on estimated future cash flows discounted at the originat effective interest rate on a portfolio basis for Groups
of similar debtors.

= Accounts receivable and other asvets

Accounts receivable and other assets are stated at original amount less allowance for any uncollectible amounts.
An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probabie. Bad debts
are written off as incurred

- Due from related parties
Due from related parties are financial assets otiginated by the Group by providing money directly to the
borrower that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market,

. Financial assets ar FVTOCT
The Group’s financial assets at FVTOCI comprise equity investments and debt instruments. The equily
investments represent investments in shares of various companies and include both quoted and unquoted.

The Group accounts for financial assets at FVTOCI if the assets meet the following conditions:

* they are held under 2 business model whose objective it is “hold to collect” the associated cash flows and sell;

and



Arzan Financial Group for Finameing and nvestment - XPse 24
and i{s Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financia! Statemenis

31 Daecember 2048

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {(continued)
415  Financial insttuments {continued)

4.15.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets {continued)

. Financial assets at FVTOCI (continued)
* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, :

Any gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income {(OCI) will be recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss npon derecognition of the asset (except for equity investments at FVTOCT as
detatled below).

Egquity investrnents at F17TOCT

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity inscruments as at FVTOCI Designation ar FVTOCI is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination,

A financial ssset s held for teading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; o

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is & derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging insttument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOC] are initially measured at fair value plus mansaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at Fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recoguised
m other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve. The cumulative pain or loss is
transferred to retained earnings within the consolidated staternent of changes in equity.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments ace recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

. Financial assets ar FVIPL

Financial assets that do not mect the criteria for measurement at amortised cost or FVOC] are categorised at
fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business model financial assets whose contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVIPL. The category also
contains investments in equity shares.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market

teansactions or using a valuation technique where no active marker exists,

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL comprise investment in equity shares.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.15  Financial instruments (continued)

4.15.4 Impaicment of financial assets

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL and Equity investments at FVTOCT are subject to review for
Impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a Group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each
category of financial assets, which are described below,

The Group recagnises a loss allowance for expected.credit Josses (“ECL”) on financial assets at amortised cost
or at FVTOCI.

For financial assets (except instalment credit debtors), the expected credit loss is estimated a5 the diffetence
between all contracteal cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, The armount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recogpition of the respective financial asset.

Instalment credit debtors are subject to the minimum provisioning requirements of the Central Bank of Kuwair.
Management believes that the impairment allowance for the instalment credit debtors under the CBK
requirements exceed the requirements of JFRS 9,

The measurement of expected credit losses is fonction of the probability of default, loss given default (i.c. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at defaule. The assessment of the probability of
default and foss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking infotmation as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date,

"The Group abways recognises lifetime BECL for accounts receivable and other assets. The expected credit losses
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate,

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increasc in credit risk since initial recoghition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a {inancial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the pottion of lifetime ECL thar
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrament that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for all financial
assets with a cotresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that arc measured at FVTQCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.



Brzan Firancial Group far Financing and vestiment - KPSe 2a
and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financis Statemenis

31 Becomber 2019

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.15  Financial instruments {continued)

4.15.4  Impaianent of financial assets {continned)

IFthe Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an arnount equal to lifetime ECL in
the previous reporting petiod, but determines at the current reposting date that the conditions for lifetime ZCL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets foxr which simplified approach was used.

4.15.5  Classification and subsequent measurcment of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include due to banks, accounts payable and other liabilities, due to related
parties, term loans and murabaha payable.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilides depends on their classification as follows:

. Financial Fabilities ar amortised cost
These are stated using effective interest rate method. Due to banks, accounts payable and other liabilities, due
to related patties, term loans and murabaha payable are classified as financial liabilitics other than at FV'TPL,

Term foany and dwe to banks

All term loans and due to banks are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains and losses arc recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Liabilities are recopnised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed or
not.

Due 1o related partior
Due to related parties are financial liabilities atising in the normal courses of the business and are not quoted
in an active market.

Murababa payabier

Murabaha payables represcnts amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased under
murabaha artangements. Murabala payables is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance
cost. Deferred finance cost is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing rate
attributable and the balance outs tanding,

416 Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment, The calculation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an in tegral
part of the effective intcrest rate.

417 Trade and settlement date accounting

All “regular way’ purchases and sales of Rnancisl assets ate recognised on the trade date Le. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the marker place.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

418 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legat tight to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabitites simultancously.

419 Fair value of financial instruments

"The fair value of financial instruments that aze teaded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for tong positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active matket, the fair value 1s determined using approptiate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s lengih marker transactions; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument rhat js substantially the same; a discounted cash fow analysis or other valuation
models.

4.20  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial asscts

For tmpairment assessment purposes, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within
the Group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group’s managerment as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least anoually,

All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impaiement whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the catrying amount may nat be recoverable,

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s ar cash-generating unit’s earrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to scll and value-in-use. To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable interest rate in order to caleulate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as neccssary
to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined
individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective sisk profiles, such
as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remazining impairment loss is charged pro rata (o the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment chatge is reversed if the cash-
genetating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its catrying amount,

4.21  Propetties held for trading

Propetties held for trading are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses
incurred in bringing cach property to its present conditon including identifiable finance cost. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on completion and

disposal.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

422  Investment properties

Investment propetties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted for
using the cost model. Investment properties ate initially measured at cost, being the purchase price and any
directly attributable expenditure for a purchased investment property and cost at the date when construction
or development is complete for a self-constructed investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, Gains and losses atising from the sale of investment propertics are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The estimated useful life for the calculation of depreciation, excluding land, is 25 years using straight line
method. The cartying amounts are reviewed at cach reporting date on an individual basis 1o assess whether they
arc recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Provision for impairment losses, if any, are made where
carrying values exceed the recoverable amount.

Transters are made to or from investinent property ouly when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
mvestment property to ownet-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment propetty, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change
in use.

4.23  Property and equipment
Land is stated at cost less any impairment losses based upon the reports of independent professional valuers.

Capital expenditure on assets in the conrse of construction ate classified as assets under construction, Such
costs are subsequently charged 1o the consolidated staterment of profit or loss if the project is abandoned, o, if
the project is, completed, are capitalised and transferred to the appropriate property and equipment catepory,
from which time depreciation is charped using the rate applicable to the category concerned. Interest incuired
on funds specifically obtained to finance construction activities arc capitalised using the actual interest rate
incurred during construction.

Other property and equipment assets are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation. The Group depreciates
these assets using the suaight-line method at rates estimated to fully depreciate the cost of the property and
equipment over their expected useful lives.

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and pertod of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattetn of economic benefits asising from items of property. In
the case of leasehold property, expeeted useful lives are determined by reference-to comparable owned asscts
or over the rerm of the lease, if shorter.

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually,

When assets ate sold or retived, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated [rom the accounts and
any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit ox loss.

4.24  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it {3 probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the cutflow may still be uncertain,
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.24  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities (continued)

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to seitle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there is 4 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an ourflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their
present values, where the time vahie of money is material,

Contingenr assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

425  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Shate capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with
the fssuing of shares are deducted from share premium,

Legal and voluntaty reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior period profits in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies’ Law and the Parent Company’s memoeandum of incorporation and articles
of association, as amended.

Other components of equity include the following:
- Poreign currency translation reserve — comprises foreign currency translation differences arising from the
teanslation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign entities into KD,
- Fair value reserve ~ comprises valuation gains and losses relating to available for sale financial assets.

Retained earnings include alf current and prior period retained profits and losses.
All transactions with owners are recorded separately within equity.

Prvidend distributions payable to sharehiolders are included in other liabilitics when the dividends have been
approved in 2 gencral meetin g

426 Leased assets
Accounting policy applicable from 1 Janvary 2019

The Group ar a lessee

For any new contracts entered into on o after 1 January 2019, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ' contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a petiod of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are
whether:

*  the contract contains an identified asset, which is cither explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4,26 Leased assets (continued)
Accounting policy applicable from 1 Januaty 2019 (continued)

The Group as a lessee (vontined)
+  the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the cconomic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the coniract
*  the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the periad of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout
the petiod of use.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
espedients. Instead of recognising a tight-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis ovet the lease rerm.

Measurement and recogniton of leases as a lessec
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a tight-of-use asset and a fease liabitity on the balance sheet
measured as follows:

Right-of-uve aiset

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measusement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asscts on a straight-tine basts from
the lense commencement date to the easlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Leare bability

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present valve of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent Lo initial measurement, the Hability is reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zeto.

The Group as a lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties. The
Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. When the terms of a lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessec, the contract is classified as finance lease. All other Jeases
are classtfied as operating leases.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.26  Leased assets (continued)
Accounting policy applicable from 1 Janvary 2019 {continued)

The Group ai a lersor feontined)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head-lease and sub-lease as two separate contacts.
The sub-lease 1s classified as finance lease or operating lease by teference to the right-of-use of asset arising
from the head-lease.

Rental income from operating leases is 3lecognized on a straight-line basis over lease teem. Initial direct cost
incurred in arranging and negotiating a leasc ate added to the carrying amount of the lease assets and
Jlecognized on a straight-line basis over the lease texm,

Amounts due under finance leases are recognised as recetvables, Finance lease income is allocated to the
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
for the [inance lease.

Accounting policy applicable before 1 January 2019

The Group as a lessee
Where the Group is a lessee, payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a steaight-
tine hasis over the lease term, Associated costs, such as maintenance and insutance, are expensed as incurred.

4.27  Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group
and not yet reissued or cancelled. Treasury shates are accounted for under cost method. Under this method,
the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. Treasury shates are
not entstled to cash dividends that the Group may distribute. The issue of stock dividend shares increases the
number of treasury shares proportrionately and reduces the average cost per shate without affecting the total
cost of treasury shares.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are recorded directly in “treasury shares reserve” in the
sharcholders’ equity. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on
that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and legal reserve.
Subsequent to this, should profits arise from sale of treasury shares an amount is transferred to reserves and
retained earnings equal to the loss previously charged to this account,

4,28  Related parties transactions

Related parties are associates, major shareholders, board of directors, exceutive staff, their family members and
the compaties owned by them. All related party transactions ate carried out with the approval of the Group’s
management,

4.29  End of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits 1s based upon the
employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a2 minimum service period in accordance
with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts, The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment. This liability, which is unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a
result of termination on the reporting date.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.29  End of service benefits (continued)

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution for Social
Secunty calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

4.30  Foreign currency translation

4.30.1 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in currency Kuwait Dinar (IKI3), which is also the
functional currency of the Parent Company. Fach entity in the Group determines its own functional cutrency
and items included in the financial statements of cach entity are measured using that fonctional currency.

4.30.2 Forcign cugrency transactions and balatices

Foreign currency transactions are transhated into the functional cuttency of the respective Group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign eschange gains and
Josses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetaty items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

4.30.3 Foreign operations

In the Group’s financial staterments, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional
currency other than the KD are translated into KI2 upon consolidation, The Ranctional currency of the entities
in the Group has remained unchanged during the reporling period.

On consolidation, assets and Habilities have been translated into KD at the closing rate at the teporting date.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into KD at the closing rate. Income and expenses have been
translated into KDD at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange diffetences are charged/credited to
other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

431  Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Group and accordingly are not
included in these consolidated financial statements.

5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent lhabilities, at the end of the teporting period. However, uncettainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a maierial adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or Liability affected in furure periods.

5.1 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
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5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
{continued)
5.1 Significant management judgments (continued)

5.1.1  Business model assessment

The Group classifies financial assets after performing the business model test (please see accounting policy for
financial instruments sections in note 4.14). This test includes judgement tcflecting alt relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their petformance measured and the risks that
affect the performance of the assets. Monitoting is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has heen a chanpe in business model 2nd so 2 prospective change to the classification
of those assets.

5.12  Sigaificant increase In credit risk

Estimated credit tosses are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime
ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since
mitial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define “significant” increase. Therefore, assessment whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into account qualitative and quantizative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

513  Judgements in determining the timing of satisfaction of petformance obligations
The determination of the whether or not performance obligation criterial set out in TFRS 15 relating to transfer
of control of goods to customers has been satisfied requires significant judgement.

5.14  Fair values of asscts and liabilities acquired
The determination of the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as a result of business
combination requires significant judgement,

5.15  Controf assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant activitics
and ability to use its power to affect variable return requires considerable judgement.

5.2 Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement ol assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially
different.

521 Impairmenr of assets with definite lives

At the financial position date, the Group’s management assesses, whether there is any indication that assers
with definite lives may be impaired. The recoveeable amount of an asset is determined based on the “value in
use” method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over the estimated useful life of the asset.

5.2.2 Impairment of associates

After application of the cquity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associated companies, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group
caleulates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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5 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
{continued)
5.2 Estimates uncertainty (continued)

8.2.3 Impairment of finatcial assets

Measurernent of estimated credit losses involves estimates of loss given default and probability of default, Loss
given defaultis an estimate of the loss arising in case of default by customer. PProbability of default is an estimate
of the likelihoad of default in the future. The Group based these estimates using reasonable and supportable
forward looking information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probabie. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision
applied according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

5.2.4  Classification of real estate property
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified as trading, property
held for development or investment property.

The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary covgse of
Lusiness.

The Group classifics property as property under development if it is acquired with the intention of
development.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income ot for capital
appreciation, or for nndetermined futuce use.

5.2.5 Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected vtility of the assets, Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change
the utility of certain software and equipmeat.

5.2.6  Business combinations

Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various clements of a business
combination. Particularly, the fair value of contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many
variables that affect future profitability.

5.2.7  Fair value of financial instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments where active
market quotes are not available. This requires management to develop estimates and assumptions based on
market inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where such
data is not observable, management uses its best estimate, Estimated fair values of fnancial instruments may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

5.2.8 Significanr influence
Significant influence exists when the size of an entity’s own voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
ather vote holders, give the entity the practical ability unilaterally to direct the relevant activities of the company.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries

8.7 Compuiition of the Group

Set out below ate details of subsidiaries held directly by the Group:

Voting capital held

Company name as at 31 December

Place of
incorporation

Principal
activities

Reporting dafe

2018 2018
Direct subsidiaries!
Al-Adcdan Real Estate Co. — SPC 100% 100%
Arzan CC for Collegtion Co. — SPC 100% 100%
Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co.— WLL 51% 51%
International Finance Co. — SAL 100% 100%
{6.1.1)
Arzan Securities Brokerage Co. SAE 84.55% 84.55%
[Formerly: IFA Securities Brokerags
Co.- SAE]
International Financial Advisers 65.20% 65.20%
Company - WLL
Saudi Invest Real Estate Co. — WLL 100% 100%
Arzan VC i Ltd. 100% 100%
HI Equity Company Lid. 99.29% 99.29%
Hi Debt Company Lid. 99.29% $9.28%
Arzan Capital (Holding) Limited (6.1.2) 78.6% 81.81%
Arzan AM Limited 100% 100%
Arzan Real Estate Co. — SAE 80% B0%
Btender Company for Rent and Lease 100% 100%
lLands and Properties — SPC
Seven Seas Resorts Co. — KSCC 100% -
{6.1.3)
Easy Buy Company — SPC (6.1.4) 100%
Indirect subsidiaries:
Through Arzan Capitel (Holding)
Limited:
Arzan Wealth {DIFC) Co. Limited 100% 100%
Arzan VC for Projects Management — 89% 98%

WLL

Kuwai

Kuwait

Kuwait
Lebanon

Egypt

Jordan

Saudi Arabia

United Arab
Emirates

Cayman
islands

Cayman
Istands

United Arab
Emirates

United Arab
Emirates

Egypt
Kuwait

Kuwait

Kuwait

United Arab
Emirates

Kuwait

Trading in all real
estate activities

Trading in real
estate activilies and
collecting money on
behalf of others

Real estate services

Finance services
including financing,
managemant and
brokerage

Brokerage services

Brokerage services
Real estale services
Projects
management

Real estate

Real eslate

Holding Company

General Trading

Real estate
Real estate

Hospitality

Credit facilities
services

Financial advisory
services

Projects
management

31 December 2049

31 December 2019

31 December 2019
30 September 2019

30 September 2019

30 September 2019

31 December 2019
31 December 2018

30 Sepiember 2019
30 September 2019
30 Septermnber 2019
31 December 2018

30 September 2019
31 December 2019

31 December 2019

31 December 2019

30 September 2018

31 December 2019
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6 Subsidiaries {continued)
6.1 Compasition of the Gronp (rontinued)

6.1.1 The Group’s subsidiary Internationat Finance Company SAL (“IFC™) is located in Lebanon which has
recently been witnessing significant economic and political trmoil, These events include significant controls
on the Lebanese banking system including placing limits on cash withdrawals of foreign currency bank balances,
limits on intemational bank transfers and reduction of contracted interest rates on foreign currency tetm
deposits. These measures have significantly curtailed the abitity of the Group to access the cash and other assets
of [FC. Moreover, subsequent to the year end the Government of Lebanon defaulted on its sovereign debt
obligation. The rating agencies have downgraded the sovereign rating of Lebanon as well as some of e Lebanese
banks including the bank where the subsidiarys cash is primaztly depasited.

Further, due to the current economic condidons the subsidiary has ceased its new lending operations and is
monitoring the business activities closely.

Management has assessed the potential effects of these events on its ability to continue to exercise control over
IFC Lebanon and concluded that it still has the power and ability to use that power to affect returns and that
it is still exposed 1o vasiable returns of the subsidiaty. Accordingly, it continues to consolidate the subsidiary.

Management has also assessed the impact of these events on the canying value of its investment in 1FC
Lebanon. As a result, the Group recognised provision of credit losses for restricted eash and cash equivalents
and an additional provision for instalment credit debtors amounting to KI31,000,000 and KID2,250,000,
respectively, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 (notes 12.2
and 13},

Farthesmore, the Group’s management believes that the carrying value of the Group’s investment in Lebanon
Is recoverable and there are cuzrently no indications that any further material additional impairment loss is
required to be recognised.

Summarised financial information of IFC Lebanon as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019, before
inter Group elimination, is set out below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KB KD
Cash and bank balances 87,165 79,193
Short term deposits 2,490,102 2,959.526
instalment credit debtors 2,137,880 6,444,330
Other assets 228,161 205,329
Total assets 5,943,408 4,688,478
Bank facilities 1,824,670 2,807,027
Accounts payable and ofher liabilities 1,216,719 1,148,688
Total liabilities 3,144,389 3,783,723
Year ended Year ended
3 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018
KD KD
Income from instalment credit 1,022,636 1,236,805

(Loss) / profif for the year (3,094,825) 455,885
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G Subsidiaries {continued)
6.1 Composition of the Group (continued)

6.1.2 In the previous year, the Parent Company’s board of directors approved to transfer patt of its ownership
in Arzan Capital (Holding) Ltd, equivalent to 6 million shates with nominal value of USD1 per share, to the
employees of the subsidiary to be distributed in accordance with the Employee Stock Option Plan of Arzan
Capital (Holding) Ltd. Accordingly, during the year 531,091 shates equivalent to 0.892% (31 December 2018:
1,442,095 shares equivalent to 2.36%) of the Group’s ownership interest in Arzan Capital (Holding) Limited
were transferted. This transaction resulted in 2 loss of K17158,944 (31 December 2018: KID431,587) recognised
in the shareholders’ equity.

Furthesmore, Arzan Capital (Holding) Limited increased its share capital by USD2.3 million in cash from
USD72.8 million to USD75.1 million in which the Group did not participate. As a result, the Group’s
ownership diluted from 81.08% to 78.60%,

6.1.3 During the year, the Group acquired from a related party 100% ownership of Seven Seas Resorts
Company located in Kuwait with for a consideration of 02,040, No batgain purchase or goodwill resulted
oh the acquisition.

6.14 Duting the year, the Group established a new subsidiary under the name of Easy Buy Company - SPC in
Kuwait with a share capital of IKI>300,000 representing its 100% ownership interest in the subsidiary.

6.2 Subridiaries with material nen-controlling interesty:
The Group includes the following subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests (NCI):

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights

Name held by the NCI Results allocated to NClI  Accumulated NCI
3 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 bec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2919 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018
% % KD KD KD KD
Kuwatit Invest Real Estate Co. — WLL 49 49 25,872 (322,645) 4,183,650 4,217,202
Azan Capital (Holding) Lid 21.40 18.1G 441,836 63,838 4,934,190 3,980,372

Summarised financial information for subsidiaries with matetial non-controlling interests, before inter Group
elimination is set out below:

1) Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co., — WL
31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2019 2018

KD KD
Non-current assets 8,622,925 8,655 746
Current assets 8,021 6,393
Total assets 8,630,946 8,662,139
Current liabilities 92.884 55,6056
Total liabilities 92,884 55,605
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 4,354,411 4,389,332
Non-cantroliing interests 4,183,650 4.217,202

Total equity : 8,538,061 8,606,534
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsiciaries with material non-controlling inferests: (continmed)
a) Kuwait Invest Real Estate Co. — WLL (continued)
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
ncome / (loss) 66,677 (105,501}
Expenses and other charges {13,877) (552,958}
Profit / {loss) for the year altributable to the shareholders of the Parent
Company 26,928 (335,814)
Frofit / (loss) for the year attributable to NCi 25,872 (322,645)
Profit/{loss) for the year 52,800 (858,459)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Parent Company {34,921} {438,464)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to NCI (33,551) (421,269)
Total comprehensive foss for the year (68,472) (859,733)
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Net cash fiow used in operaling activities {5,013} (7,034)
Net cash outflows {5,013) {7,034}
b) Arzan Capital (Holding) Lid :
31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Non-current assets 26,057,886 18,938,052
Current assets 6,281,801 3,202 902
Total assets 32,339,687 22,141,044
MNon-current liabilities 143,533 107,817
Current liahiiities 9.141,752 248,954
Total liabilities 9,285,285 358,571
Equity atiributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 18,120,212 17,804,101
Non-controlling interests 4,934,190 3,080,372
Total equity 23,064,402 21,784,473
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6 Subsidiaries (continued)
6.2 Subsidsaries with nraterial non-controlling interests: (ronsitued)
b) Arzan Capital (Holding) Ltd (continued)
Year ended Year ended
31 Deg. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Income 3,483,197 1,152,791
Expenses and other charges (1,418,772} (627.,656)
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company 1,822,589 461,297
Profit for the year atiributable fo NCJ 441 836 63 838
Profit for the year 2,064,425 525,135
Totaf comprehensive income for the year attributable to the sharehoiders of
the Parent Company 1,542,731 104,382
Total comprehensive income for tha year attributable to NC| 420,090 14,445
Tataf comprehensive income for the year 1,962,821 118 827
Net cash flow from opefating activities 1,294,307 1,656,904
Net cash inflows 1,832,191 1,216,088
7 Income from instaiment credit debtors
Year endad Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Interest income from instalment credit 901,448 923,980
Discount, commission and fees 249,898 467,218
Recovery of written off balances 443,925 303,986
1,595,269 1,685,184

a8 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group earns revenue from its asset management and advisory services, which are transferred over time.

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD

Assets management 88,325 67,150
Custodian and other fees 229,478 263,081
Advisory services 2,645 531 1,326,003
2,983,334 1,856,324

Revenue from advisory services represents 89% of the revenue from contracts with cus

ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: 80%).

tomers for the year
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9 Finance costs
Year encled Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
On financial abiiities at amortised cost:
Due to banks 238,885 298 946
Term loans 1,040,500 981,210
Murabaha payable 528,897 255,185
Others 302,816 45,180
2,111,098 1,580,541

10 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the
sharcholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares ourstanding during the year
excluding treasury shares. As there are no dilutive instruments outstanding basic and diluted earnings per share

are identical.

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2018 2018
KD KD
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 1,095,948 2,533,530
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year {excluding
treasury shares) — shares 796,798,668 796,798,668
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent Company — Fils 1.376 3.180
11 Net (loss)/gain on financial assets
Net (foss)/gain on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 21 Dec.
leyke] 2018
KD KD
At amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 898,591 896,935
Instalments credit debiors (896,725) 1,911,295
Gain on financial assets at amortised cost 1,866 2,808,230
Financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or loss:
Gain on change in fair value 3,256,259 853,926
Gain on sale 845,937 391,004
Dividend income 404,533 372,827
Gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,506,729 1,717,757
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11 Net {loss)igain on financial assets {continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 Dee. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Interest income 56,993 77,550
Dividend income 1,855,357 1,882 328
Gain recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss 1,912,350 1,959 876
Loss on change in fair value (5,567,842) (10,764,560)
Loss on sale {3,689,399) (464,143)
Loss recognised in equity (9,257,241) (11,228,703}
Loss on financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive income {7,344,891) (9,268,827
Net loss on financial assets {2,836,286) {4,742,840)
12 Cash and cash equivalents
12.1  Cash and cash equivalents
31 Dec, 31 Dec,
2019 2018
KD KD
Cash and bank balances 7,898,924 7.414,427
Term deposits — 1 to 3 months - 2,958,626
Cash and cash equivalents 7,898,924 10,374,053
Less: due fo banks (1,830,923} {(4,019,970)
Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash fiow 5,968,001 6,354,083
12,2 Restricted cash and cash equivalents
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Cash and bank balances 87,165 .
Term deposits - 1 to 3 monthe 3,490,102 -
3,577,267 -
Provision of credit losses {1,000,000) -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,577,267 -

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent balances deposited in a bank located in Lebanon and
denominated in Lebanese Pound. Due to the cutrent pelitical and economic events, the centra]l bank of
Lebanon imposed a series of measures including restrictions on withdeawals and limitation of transfers of
money abroad. Consequently, the Group Iacks access to these bank balances on time and in full. Therefore, at
the end of the year, the Group recognised a provision for credit losses of KID1,000,000 against these restricted
cash and cash equivalents of 1ts subsidiary “IFC Lebanon” (note 6.1.1). IHowever, subsequent to the reporting
date, KID1,924,670 of the restricted cash and cash equivalents has been used to repay the outstanding balance
of due to banks,

The term deposits carry effective interest rate ranging 9.25% - 12% (31 December 2018: 7.25% - 8%) per

A401mim,
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13 instalment credit debtors

31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2019 2018
KD KD
Gross instalment credit debtors 11,408,073 12,904,423
Deferred income {1,348,235) (1,541,493)
i 10,059,838 11,362,930
Specific provision for credit losses (2,266,547) (2,106,596)
General provision far credit losses (3,664,538) (1,351,879)
4,128,653 7,904,355
Gross instalment credic debrors are sepayable as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Within one year 3,036,274 3,477,065
More than a year 8,371,789 8,427 358
11,408,073 12,904,423

The effective annual interest rate earned on instalment credit ranged from 5.75% to 7.5% per annam {31
December 2018: 5.5% to 7% per anhum).

The gross instalment credit debtors include an amount of KID664,866 (31 December 2018: IKI759,723) in
respect of related parties (note 33). This amount is secured by way of pledge of certain local shares.

The movements in the provisions for credit losses are as follows:

31 December 20119 31 December 2018
Specific General Specific General
provision provision Total provision provision Tofal
KD KD KD KD KD KD
Opening balance 2,106,586 1,351,879 3,458,575 2,000,048 118,794 2,118,842
Effect of adoption IFRS 9 - - - 416,949 1,131,606 1,548,555
Write off during the year (3,904) {9,314) (13,218) - - -
Charge for the year 170,058 2,321,938 2,631,994 51,533 198,428 249,964
Transfer . - . {42 580) 42 580 -
Reversal during the year (583} - {583) (326,084} {139,888} (466,072}
Foreign currency transkalion
differances {5,518) {65} (5,583) 6,730 559 7,289
Closing balance 2,266,647 3,664,538 5,931,185 2,106,686 1,351,879 3,458,575

Provision for credit losses 15 calculated, in all material respect, with the requirements of the Central Bank of
Kuwait. However, at the end of the year, the Group recognised an additional general provision of KI22,250,000
for instalment credit debtors of its subsidiary “IFC Lebanon” {note 6.1.1).
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14 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD

Local quoted shares 816,880 929 905
Foreigh guoted shares 348,388 221,427
Foreign unguoted shares 2,118,357 1,998,196
Investments in managed portfolios 18,635,479 5,698 246
Investment in managed fund 588,775 -

14,504,85% 0,847,774

The investments in managed portfolios with aggregate carryings value of KD9,989,227 (31 December 2018
K126,262,169) are pledged against termn loans and murabaha payable (notes 24 and 25).

The hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss 1s presented in Note 35.2.

15 Accounts receivable and other assets

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Financial assets
Trade receivables 2,442,229 2,693,434
Instaiments sales receivable 952,210 503,331
Due from related parties 1,359,861 948 467
Staff loans receivahle 1,870 3,479
4,756,370 4,148,711
Provision for doubtful debfs {2,320,095) (2,200,758)
2,436,275 1,938,953
Non-financial assets
Prepaymenis 168,591 147,73
Advance payments to purchase investmenis 79,615 1,000,976
Other assets 2,284,480 1,104,115
4,968,961 4,191,835

The earrying values of the financial assets included above approximate their fair values and all are dve within

Ol year.

The movement in the provision for accounts receivable 1s as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,209,758 1,654,248
Agising on adoption of IFRS 8 - 371,204
Charge for the year 211,328 290,781
Written off during the year (101,024) (27,518)
Reversal during the year - (78,968)
Foreign currency 33 -
Balance at end of the year 2,320,085 2,208,758
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16 Properties held for trading

Properties held for trading represent the Group’s share of investments in properties ontside Kuwait.

The movement in the properties held for trading is as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 1,409,531 1,799,345
Disposal during the year - (385,814)
1,409,531 1,408,531
Provision for properties held for trading {503,391) (386,251)
Balange at 31 December 906,140 1,023,280

As a result of impaitment testing of the carrying value of the properties, an amount of KID117,140 (31
December 2018: gain on reversal of provision by KID65,156) has been recognised as a provision in the current
years. The impairment testing by management was based on fait value of the propertics which has been

determined based on valuation obtained from independent and qualified valuer as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements.

17 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD
Local quoted shares 4,134,661 5,146,265
{ ocal unquoted shares 12,679,879 13,325,654
Foreign unguoted shares 39,869,688 28,981,411
Investments in managed portfolios 7,076,658 22,275,990
Debt instruments 2,641,946 6,618,848
Investment funds 98,651 248,739
66,501,483 76,598,937

These investments are held for medium to loag-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the Group has clected
to designate these financial assets as at FVT'OCI as it believes that recognising short-texm fluctuations in the
fair value of these financial assets in the consolidared statement of profit or loss would not be consistent with
the Group’s sttategy of holding these financial assets for long-term purposes and realising their performance

potental in the long run. The Group’s fimancial assets at FVTOCI disaggrepated by its business scctors are as
foliows:

Financial Real Consumer
services estate services Others Totat
KD KD KD KD KD

Local quoted shares - 3,779,619 334,080 20,962 4,134,681
Local unquoted shares 11,432,368 33,392 1,188,562 27,557 12,679,879
Foreign unquoted shares 8,795,384 30,256,184 - 814,120 39,869,688
favestments in managed portfolios 2,160,153 - 4,818,505 - 7,076,658
Debt instruments 1,663,503 978,443 - - 2,641,946
Investment funds 98,651 - - - 98,651

24,154,058 35,047,638 6,437,147 862,633 66,501,483
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17 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

{continued)
Debt instruments amounting to KI2978,443 (31 December 2018: KI>894,299) are secured by charges over real
estate properties and carry average intevest rate of 7% (31 December 2018: 7%) per annum.

Durlng the year, based on the management’s impairment testing {or the debt instruments, loss on impairment
of financial assets at FVTOCI has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The carrying
value of this investment in that debt instrument of KI25,724,549, after impairment, has been reclassified to
foreign unquoted shares as it has been converted to equily instruments.

Quoted and unquoted local shares and investments in managed portfolios with an aggregate carrying value of
KD10,191,948 (31 December 2018: KID28,178,450) are pledged against term loans and mutabaha payables
{notes 24 and 25).

The hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments is presented in note 35,2,

18 Investment in assaociates

18.1 The details of the Group’s investment in associates are given below:

Percentage of

Country of ownership
incorporation 31 December Activity
2019 2018
% %

Offset Holding Co. - KSCC Kuwait 50,00 50.00 Holding Company
Al Wafir Marketing Services Co. - KSCC Kuwait 34.00 34.00 Real estate
Al Oula Slaughterhouse Co. - KSCC Kuwait 28.88 28.89 Services
Gulf Reat Estate Co. - WLL Kuwait 20.13 2013 Real estate
Arzan international Company for Hospital Establishment &

Canstruction and Management — WLL , Management of

Kuwait 10.00 10.00 Hospitals

Kuwait Clearing Company - KSC Kuwait 13.33 - Services

During the year, the Group reclassified its investment in Kuwait Clearing Company — KSC (Closed) amounting
to IKD16,046,700 representing 13.33% ownership interest from financial assets at fair value through other
comptehensive income to investment in associate. Although, the Group owns less than 20% ownership interest
in Kuwait Cleating Company ~ KSC (Closed), it exercises significant influence over the investee as it is
represented by two of the ten members on the board of ditectoss of the investee.

The reclassification of the investment as an associate resulted in provisional goodwill of KID11,540,530. The
provisional fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of acquisition of the above investee
atce as fotlows:
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18 Investment in associates (continued)

18.1  The details of the Group’s investment in associates are given below: (continued)

KD
Total assets 41,373,690
Total liabilities 7577415
Net assels 33,796,275
Purchase consideration 16,046,700
Share of net assets acquired (4,506,170)
Goodwill 11,640,530

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired have been provisionally determined by the
management of the Group. The estimates referred to above, and resultant goodwill, are subject to revision
within twelve months of the acquisition date.

All associates are unquoted.
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18 Investment in associates {(continued)

i8.3 Set out below is the aggregate information for the individually imimaterial associates.

31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD

Aggregate share in associates’ assets and liabilities:
Assets 7,404,823 1,488,535
Liabilities 2,274,336 76,917

5,130,487 1411618
Aggregate share in agsociates' results:
Revenue 815,225 190,325
Profit for the year 385,967 71,364
Group's share of total comprehensive income 125178 71,300
Dividends received 108,346 86,675

18.4 The movement in the investment in associates is as follows:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2018
KD KD

At 4 January 27 476,807 28,178,561
Additions 16,046,700 15,000
Share of results 1,973,274 206,489
Dividends (743,628} {721,958)
Share of other comprehensive loss (121,278) (201,285)
At 31 December 44,631,874 27,476,807

Tnvestments in associate with a catrying value of KD37,863,555 (31 December 2018: IKD8,140,899) are pledged
against term loans and murabaha payables (notes 24 and 25).

19 Investments in real estate under development

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2018
KD KD

Cost

Land cost ’ 5,050,140 4,120,080
Lands purchased - 854,154
Development costs 133,828 142,986
Foreign cusrency 129,706 -
Totat cost 5313,674 6,117,220
Provision for impairment in vajue - (67,080)
Net book value at end of the year 5,313,674 5,050,140

Investments in real estate under development represent 33.54% share in the ownership of the right of use of
Jand located in Al [Dubaiya leased from the Ministty of Finance in Kuwait. The tight of use of land is jointly
owned by the Parent Company and other investors through a real estate portfolio agreement. Under the
agreement, the real estate is being developed by one of the other investors, which is 2 company specialized in
the field of real estate investments.
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19 Investment in real estate under development (continued)

As a result of impairment testing of the cartying value of the property, the Group tecognised an impairment
loss of KD Nil (31 December 2018: KID67,080). The impairment testing by management was based on fair
value of the property which has been determined based on valuations obtained from independent and qualified
valuers as of the date of the consalidated financial statements.

20 Investment properties

Land Building Total
KD KD KD

Cost
1 January 2019 1,023,750 1,484,988 2,508,739
31 December 2013 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
Accumulaled depreciation
1 January 2019 - 853,534 853,534
Charge for the year - 58,741 58,741
31 December 2019 - 812,275 912,275
Net book valug
At 31 December 2018 1,023,750 572,714 1,586,484
Fair vaiue as at 31 December 2019 1,732,680 879,820 2,712,500
Cost
1 January 2018 1,023,750 1,484,989 2,508,739
31 December 2018 1,023,750 1,484,080 2,508,739
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2018 - 794 795 784,795
Charge for the year - 58,739 58,739
31 December 2018 - 853,534 853,534
Net book value
Af 31 December 2018 1,023,750 831,455 1,865,205
Fair value as at 31 December 2018 1,638,953 4,029 797 2,668,750

Land is not depreciated. Building is depreciated over 25 years. The fair value of the investment propertics is
deterimined based on independent valuations.

The investment properties represent the part of building constructed on land rented to third parties, and is
accounted for as an investment property under IAS 40.

The investment properties are mortgaged against murabaha payables (note 25),
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

22 Due to banks

This represents outstanding amounts of the credit facilitics obtained by the Group from foreigh banks in the
form of overdraft facilities. The credit facilities carty intexest rate of 7.50% per annum (31 December 2018:
3.25% - 5.75% per annum), payable on demand and secured against term deposits,

23 Accounts payable and other liabilities

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2018
KD KD
Trade payablas 143,113 142,228
Due to refated parties (see (i) below) 3,547,720 871,561
Other payables 2,342,120 2,100,280
Accruad interest 104,483 117.890
Provision for siaff leave 225,735 204,581
KFAS payabie 226,802 226,802
NLET and Zakat payable 2,924,742 2,924 742
Advances received from investors (see (ii) below) 3,795,856 -
Lue to sharehalders 361,314 361,314
13,671,885 7,049,378

) Due to related parties includes an amount of KID1,957,190 received by one of Group’s subsidiaries from a
related party for the purpose of purchase of investment on its behalf, Subsequent to the reporting date,
transactions amounting to KID1,957,190 were completed and the investments were purchased and
transfetred (o the related party.

if) Advances received from investors represent amounts received by one of the Group’s subsidiaries from
investors o purchase investments on their behalf, as of the reporting date, the group is in the process to
transfer these investment to the investors.

24  Term loans

As of 31 December 2019, the outstanding term loans obtained from local banks amounting to KID14,944 000
carries annual interest rates ranging from 5.5% to 6.15% {31 December 2018: 5.75% to 6.4%) pee annum and
repayable in various instalments ending in Junc 2022 Local term loans atc secured against maortgage of certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and investment in associate (notes 14, 17 and 18).

Fucthermore, during the year, one of the subsidiaries obtained a new loan of USID10 million (equivalent to
KID3,030,500) from an investment company located in Kuwait. The loan carties an annual interest rate of 10%
and repaid in full on 16 March 2020. The term loan is unsecured.

31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2018 2018
KD KD
Within one year 9,254,500 4,858 000
After one year 8,720,000 13,024,000

17,974,500 17,880,000
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25 Murabaha payables

These represent Islamic financings obtained in Kuwait Dinar and US Dollar from local and foreign financial
institutions, carrying cffective profit rates of 3% to 5.75% (3t December 2018: 3% to 6%) per annum. These
financings are secured against pledge of certain financial assets at fair yalue through profit or loss, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment in associates, investment properties and property
and equipment (notes 14, 17, 18, 20 and 21) and payable in various instalments ending in May 2024, Murabaha
payable are due as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2018
KD KD
Within one year 3,792,517 868,618
After one year 8,336,153 3,612,500
42,128,670 4,469,119

26 Share capital and share premium
As at 31 December 2019, the authorised, issued and paid up share capital of the Parent Company consists of
802,882,556 shares of 100 fils cach (31 IDecember 2018; 802,882,556 shares). All shares are in cash,

The share premium is non-distriburable,

27 Treasury shares

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
Number of treasury shares 6,083,882 6,083,892
Percentage of ownership (%) 0.758% 0.758%
Markel value (KD} 144,188 170,349
Cost (KD) 559,232 559,232

Reserves of the Parent Company equivalent to the cost of the treasuey shares have been earmarked as non-
distriburable.

28 Reserves

Legal resesve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, as amended, 10% of the profit for the year attributable to the sharcholders of the Parent
Company (before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors’ remuncration) is required to e
transferred to legat reserve. The Parent Cosnpany may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the
reserve totals 50% of the paid-up share capital.

Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount requited to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid
up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend of
thar amount.

No teansfer Is required in a year in which the Parent Company has ineutred a loss or where cumulative losses
exist,
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28 Reserves {continued)

Voluntary reserve

The Patent Company’s Artictes of Association, as amended, require that 10% of the profit for the year
attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company (before contributions to KIFAS, NLST, Zakat and
directors’ remuneration) should be transfesred to voluntary reserve, There are no restrictions on distribution
of voluntary reserve.

No transfer is required in a year in which the Parent Company has incurred a loss or where cumulative losses

exist.

29 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Due to Term Murabaha
banks loans Payables Total
KD KD KD KD
Balance at 1 January 2019 4,019,970 17,880,000 4,469,119 26,369,089
Cash flows:
« Repaymeni (2,089,042) (4,856,000} (1,749,850) {8,694,892)
+ Proceeds - 4,951,500 9,412,624 14,364,124
Non-cash items:
« Foreign currency differences {5} (1,000) (3,223) {4,228)
31 December 2019 1,930,923 17,874,500 12,128,670 32,034,093
Balance at 1 January 2018 5,226,027 16,380,000 5,267,067 26,873,004
Cash flows:
*«  Repayment - (3,744,000) (5,047 ,663) (8,791 ,6583)
*  Proceeds 37,933 4,000,000 4 250,000 8 287,833
Nan-cash items:
*  Transfer {1.244,000) 1,244,000 - -
¢ Foreign currency differences 10 - (285) {275}
31 December 2018 4,019,970 17,880,000 4,469,119 26,369,089

30 Proposed dividends and annual general assembly

Subsequent to the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the board of directors have proposed
not to distrtbute any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019, This proposal is subject to the approval
of the general assembly and the regulatory authorities.

The Annual General Assembly of the sharcholders of the Parent Company held on 21 May 2019 approved the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 withour dividend. Further, the annual
general assembly approved to distribute directors” remuneration of KD42,000 for the year then ended which
has been included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss of the
curtent year.
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31 Fiduciary accounts
Investment portfolios managed by the Group and assets held in toust o in 2 fiduciary capacity and related
liabilities are not treated as the Group's assets or Nabilities and accordingly are not included in the consolidated

financial position. Total fiduciary assets as at the financial position date were KID33,483,866 (31 December
2018; KID35,154,384).

32 Segmental information

Operating segments are identified based on internal management reporiing information that is regularly
teviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources 1o the segment and to assess its
performance, and is reconciled to Group profit or loss.

The Group’s principal activities, significant assets and iabilitics are carried out and located in [uwait, GCC,
Middle East, USA and Europe. The Group opetates in four business segments; instalment credit, investments,
financial brokerage and real estate. The segmental analysis of total revenues, profit for the yeat, total assets and
total liabilities for the business segments are as follows:

Instalment Financial
credit Investments  brokerage Real estate Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Year ended 31 December 2019
Total revenues 1,749,362 12,211,277 416,497 149,736 14,526,872
{Loss)profit for the year {6,677,930) 8,248,192 73,111 {103,362) 1,540,011
As at 31 December 2019
Tolal assets 7,266,362 128,638,475 11,333,180 8,429,896 155,667,913
Total liabilities 2,806 417 42,902,244 752,817 726,316 AT 187,754
Net assets 4,459,945 85736,231 10,580,363 7,703,580 108,480,119
Year ended 31 December 2018
Total revenues 1918943 6,810,687 (273,104) 200,475 8,657,001
(Lass)/profit for the year (2,153,694) 4,976,208 {5632 589 {3,161) 2,286,764
As at 31 December 2018
Total assets 11,910,718 115,104,497 11,607,284 8,318,161 146,940,560
Total lighitities 3,612,551 28,851,432 772,949 551,113 34,788,045
Net assets 8,298,167 85253065 10,834,335 7.767.048 112,152,615

33 Related party balances and transactions

Related parties represent associates, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group,
and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such partics. Pricing policies and terms of
these transactions are approved by the Group’s management. Transactions between the Paxent Company and its
subsidiaries which are related parties of the Patent Company have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33 Related party balances and transactions {(continued)

Details of significant related party balances and iransactions ate as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
KD KD

Balances included in the consolidated statement of financial position
Instalment credit debtors-gross (note 13) 664,866 759,723
Due from related parties - net {note 15) 1,195,897 798,190
Due {o shareholders (note 23) 361,314 361,314
Due to related parties (note 23) 3,547,720 971,561

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2018 2018
Kb KD

Transactions Included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
Income from installment credit debtors 47,991 54,888
Interest income 610,768 662,760
General and administrative expenses 73,8328 103,163
Finance costs 3,208 -
HKey management compensation:
Salaries and other short-term benefits 944,371 1,008,870
End of service benefits 54,100 52,681
Board of directors’ remuneration (included in in general and administrative
expenses) 42,000 42,000
Board committes remuneration - 22,200

34 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk. credit rvisk and Lquidity risk,
'y ) q ¥

"The Pagent Company’s board of directors sets out policies for reducing cach of the risks discussed below.

"The Group does not use derivative financial instruments, for speculative putposes,

The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described below,

34.1 Matket risk

a) Foreign curtency risk

The Group mainly operates in the GCC, other Middle Eastern countrics, Burope and USA and is exposed to
foreign currency risk atising from various foreign currency exposures. Foreign exchange tisk arises from future
commetcial transactions, recognised assets and lizbilities and net investments in foreign operations.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to forcign currency risk, non-IKuwaiti Dinar cash flows ate monitored in
accordance with the Group’s risk management policies. Generally, the Group’s risk management procedures
distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows {due within twelve months) from longer-term cash flows.

The Group had the following net significant exposures denominated in foreign currencies, translated into
Kuwaiti Dinar at the closing rate;
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34  Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

341  Market risk (continued)

a) Foreign cutrency risk (continued)
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
Equivalent Equivalent
KD KD
US Dollar 21,547,955 30,260,871
Lebanese Lira 3,734,896 7,950,216
Great Britain Pound 6,904,269 5,388,312
Egyptian Pound 2,441,700 2,168,729
UAE Dirham 906,140 1.006,242
Saudi Riyal 36,003 {8,458}
Euro 10,529,417 4 884 635
Omani Riyal 55,770 54,110
Jordanian Dinar 732,929 785,744
Norway Krona 320,187 339,038

The following table derails the Group’s sensitivity to a 2% (2018: 2%) increase and decrease in the KD against
above {oreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary assets and Habilities and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 2% change in foreign currency
rates, A positive aumber below indicates an increase in profit and equity and a negative number indicates
decrease in profit and equity. All other variables are held constant. There has been no change in the methods
and the assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis.

+2 % Impact +2 % Impact -2 % Impact -2 % Impact
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec, 31 Dec.
2019 2018 20149 2018
KD KD KD KD
Profit for the year 156,849 373,853 {156,849) (373 ,653)
Equity 767,336 684,735 {787,336) (684,735)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate tisk arses from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect furure profitability or the
fair values of financial instruments. As the Group is not exposed to a significant interest rate risk on interest
bearing assets, the Group is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its borrowings which are both at fixed
rate and floating mterest rate. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings. The Board has established levels of interest rate risk by setting limits on the
interest rate gaps for stipulated periods.

Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies used, if required, to ensure positions are
maintained within established limits.

The effective interest rate (cffective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used in a
present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate for a
fixed rate instrument carried at amortised cost and a current rate for a floating rate instrument or an instrument
carried at fasr value.

The Group’s interest rate exposure based on earlier of contractuat repricing arrangements and maturity at 31
December 2019 was as follows:
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34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

3.1 Matket risk (continued)

b) Interest rate risk (continued)
. Sub-total Non-interest
Upto1 3-12 up to Over1 hearing Effactive
month 1-3 months months 1 year year ifems Total interest rate
Ko KD KD KD KD KD Ko (%o}

Assets
Cash and cash 7,895,924

equivalents 7.898,924 . - 7,896,924 - - -
Restricted cash and 2,577,267

cash equivalernts 87,164 2,490,103 - 2,577,267 - - 9.258%-12%
Instaiment credit

debiors 683,380 9,127 2,003,766 3,036,273 1,082,380 - 4,128,653 5.75%-7.5%
financial assets at

fair value through

profit or loss - - - - - 14,504,859 14,504,859 -
Accounts receivable

and other assets - - - - - 4,968,261 4,968,961 .

8,669,468 2,838,230 2,003,766 13,512,464 1,082,380 19,473,820 34,078,664

Liabilities
Due to banks 1,930,923 - . B 1,930,923 - - 1,830,923 7.5%

Accounts payable

and other liabilities - - - - - 13,671,885 13 671,885 -
Term loans - 4,044,500 §,210,000 9,254 800 8,720,000 - 17,974,500 5.5%-6.15%
Murabaha payables . 552,486 3,240,031 3,792,517 8,336,153 - 12,128,870 3%-5.75%
Provision for

employees' end of

sefvice benefifs 1,481,816 1,481,816 -

1,830,923 4,586,986 8,450,031 14,977,940 17,056,153 15,153,701 47,187,794

The Group’s interest rate exposure based on eatlier of contractual repricing arrangements and maturity at 31
December 2018 was as follows: ' '

. Sub-total Non-interest Effective
Uptc1 312 up to Over 1 bearing interast
month 1-3 months months 1 year year itemns Total rate

KD KD KO KD KD KD KD {%)

Assets

Cash and cash

equivalenis 7.414,427 2,959,626 - 10,374,053 - “ 16,374,053  7.25%-3%
Instalment credit
debtors 580,264 337,601 2,253,648 3,181,813 4,722,542 - 7,904 3565 5.5%7%
Financial assets at
fair value through
profil or loss - - - - - 9847774 9,847 774 -
Accounts receivable
and other assets - - - - - 4,194,835 4,191,835 -
8,004,691 3,297,227 2,253,948 13,565,866 4,722,542 14,039,609 32,318,017
Liabifities
5.25%-
Due to banks 4,019,970 - - 4,019,870 - . 4,018,970 5.75%
Accounts payable
and olher liabilities - - - - - 7,040,378 7.049,378 -
5.75%-
Term loans - 1,014,000 3,842,000 4,856,000 13,024,000 - 17,880,000 6.4%
Murabaha payables - 537,869 318,750 856,619 3612500 - 4,469,118 3%-8%

Pravision for
amployees' end of
gservice benefits 1,369,578 1,369,578 -

4,018,970 1,651,869 4,160,750 9,732,589 16,636,500 8,418,956 34,788,045
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
341 Market risk (continued)

b) Interest rate risk (continued)

"The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the result for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates of +1% and -1% (2018: +1% and ~1%) with effect from the beginning of the year, These changes are
considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of cusrent matket condition. The calculations are
based on the Group’s financial instruments held at each financial position date. All other variables are held
constant,

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018
+1% -1% + 1% ~1%
KD KD KD KD
Results for the year (174,292) 174,292 (80,907) 80,907

©) Price rislk

The Group is exposed to cquity price risk with respect to its equity investments. Equity investments are
classified either as investments at fair value through profit or loss and investrents at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

'T'o manage its price risk arsing from invesmments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio,
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group,

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposurc to eguity price risks at the
consolidated financial statements date,

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the effect on the profit for the year and equity for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 would have been as follows:

Profit for the year Equity
31 Dec, 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2019 2018 2019 2018
KD Ko KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss . +1,450,486 084,777 - -
Financiai assets at fair value through
ather comprehensive income - - 16,650,148 17,659 604

34.2  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss, The Group’s credit policy and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or Groups of
customers in specific locations or business through diversification of its activities. It also abtains security when
appropriate.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial asseis recognised at the
financial position date, as summarised below:
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34 Risk management ohjectives and policies (continued)

342 Credit risk (continued)

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2019 2018

Kb KD
Cash and cash eguivalents 7,893,924 10,374,053
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,577,287 -
instalment credit debtors 4,128,653 7,904,358
Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or ioss (note 14} 10,635,479 5,608,246
Financiai assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 7,175,308 22,524 729
Accounts receivable and other assets 4,568,961 4,191,835
Total 37,384,593 51,683,218

As of 31 December 2019, instalment credit debtoss and restricted cash and cash equivalents amount of
KID5,715,247 are located in Lebanon. During the year, most of the global credit rating agencies significantly
lowered the rarings of Lebanon because of the consequences of the current economic and political events,

However, based on management assessment, the mategal expected credit loss impact arising from such
financial assets have been tecognised in these consolidated financial statements.

343  Concentration of assets
The distribution of assets by geographic region is as follows:

Other Middle
Eastern Europe ang
Kiiwail GCC countries cther usa Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 1,568,670 4,992,057 1,321,947 - 16,250 7,898,924
Restricted cash and cash

equivalenis n - 2,577,267 - - 2 577,267
Instalment credit debtors 980,673 - 3,137,980 . - 4,128,653
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or foss 10,808,087 134,985 1,710,216 68,781 1,784,810 14,504,859
Accounts receivable and other

assets 1,269,017 2,399,568 1,300,376 - - 4,968,961
Properties held for frading - 906,140 - - - 906,140
Financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive

income 23,989,849 1,688,275 319,329 19,141,128 21,362,902 66,501,483
Investment in associates 44,631,874 - - - - 44,631,874
Investment in real estate under

development 4,122,633 - 1,191,144 - - 5313674
investment properties 1,596,464 - - . - 1,586,464
Property and equipment 2,500,973 1,769 136,872 - - 2,639,614

Total 91,476,140 10,122,774 11,695,128 19,209,909 23,163,962 155,667,913
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Risk management ohjectives and policies {(continued)

343  Concentration of assets (continued)

Other Midgie
Eastern Europe and
Kuwait GCC counftries other USA Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

At 31 December 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 2,993,462 2,997,024 4,376,535 - 7.032 10,374,053
installment credit debtors 1,641,296 - 6,263,050 - - 7,904 355
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 7,192,074 - 1,719,867 71,747 864,088 9,847,774
Accounts receivable and other

assets 24,5654 412 336,805 1,300,518 - - 4,181,835
Properties held for trading - 1,023,280 - - - 1,023,280
Financial assts at fair vaiue

through other comprehensive

income 40,920,853 1,834,375 506,207 10,728,518 22 806,984 76,506,937
investment in associates 27,476,807 - - - - 27 476 807
Investment In rea! estate under

develapment 4,068,906 - 881,234 - - 5,050,140
investment properties 1,655,205 - - - - 1,655,205
Property and eqaipment 2,738,208 097 80,978 - - 2,820,274
Total 91,241,313 5,992 581 15,228,399 10,800,265 23,678,102 146,940,660

34.4  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Geoup will be unable to meer its liabilities when they fall due. To limit this risk,
management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors liquidity on
a daily basis.

The table below summarises the maturity profife of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The maturities of assets and
habilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period from the financial position date to the contractual
maturity date. The matusity profile for available for sale investments is determined based on management's estimate of
liquidation of those investments. Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019:

Sub-total Up
Up to $-3 3-12 to Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 vear Totat
KD KD KD KD KD KD

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7,898,924 - - 7,898,924 - 7,898,924
Restricted cash and cash

equivaients {see balow) 2,577,267 2,677,267 2,677 267

instaltment credit debtors 683,380 348,127 2,003,768 3,036,273 1,092,380 4,128,653
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or

loss 14,504,859 - - 14,604,858 - 14,504,859
Accounts receivable and

other assels 892,013 184,622 3,792,376 4,968,961 - 4,968,961
Properties held for trading - - 806,140 806,140 - 906,140
Financial assets at fair value

through olher

comprehensive income - - - . 66,601,483 6,501,483
investment in associates - - - - 44,631,874 44,631,874
Investment in real estate

under developmend - - - - 5,313,674 5,313,674
fnvesiment properties - - - - 1,696,464 1,596,464
Property and equipment - . . - 2,639,614 2,639,614

Total assets 24,079,176 3,111,016 6,702,232 33,892,424 121,776,489 166,667,913
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34  Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

344  Liquidity risk (continued)

&2

Sub-total Up
Upto 1-3 3-12 to Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

LIABILITIES
Due to banks 1,830,923 - - 1,830,923 - 1,930,923
Accounts payable and

ather ligbilities 660,291 4,610,727 5,609,782 10,780,800 2,891,085 13,671,885
Term loans - 4,044,500 5,210,000 8,254,500 8,720,000 17,974,500
Murabaha payables . 552,486 3,240,031 3,792,517 8,336,153 12,128,670
Provision for employess’

end of service benefits - - - - 1,481,816 1,481,846
Total liahilities 2,691,244 9,207,713 13,959,813 25,758,740 21,429,054 47,187,794

As of 31 December 2019, there are certain restrictions on the liquidity of cash and cash equivalents amount of

KID2,577,267 (note 12.2).

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities at 3 December 2018;

Sub-total Up
Up to 1-3 312 fo Cver
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7,414,427 2,859,626 - 10,374,053 - 10,374,053
Instailment! credil debtors 590,264 337,601 2,253,048 3,181,813 4,722 542 7,204,355
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss 9,847 774 - - 9,847 774 - 9,847 774
Accounts receivable and

other assets 745,843 223,247 3,222.745 4,191,835 - 4,191,835
Properties held for trading “ - 1,023,280 1,023,280 - 1,023,280
Financial assets at fair value

through other

comprahensive income - - - N 76,586 837 76,596 937
Investment in associates - - - - 27,476 807 27,476 807
Invastment in real estate

under development - - - - 5,050,140 5,050,140
investment properties - - - - 1,666,205 1,655,205
Property and equipment - - - - 2,820,274 2820274
Total assets 18,588,308 3,520,474 6,459,873 28,618,755 118,321,805 146,840,660
LIABILITIES
Due fo banks 4,018,870 - - 4,018,870 - 4,019,970
Accounts payable and

other fiabilities 445 581 644,093 3,065 620 4,168,294 2,891,084 7,049,378
Term loans - 1,014,000 3,842,000 4,856,000 13,024,000 17,880,000
Murabaha payables - 537,869 318,750 856,619 3,612,500 4,469,119
Provision for employees'

end of service benefits - - - - 1,364,578 1,360,578
Total liabilittes 4 468,551 2,195,962 7,226,370 13,890,883 20,897 162 34,788,045
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34 Risk management objectives and policies (continued}

344  Liquidity risk (continved)
The contractual maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flow is as follows:

Sub-total
Up to 1-3 312 Upio Over
1 month months months 1 year 1 year Total
KD KD KD Kb KD KD

31 December 2019
Financial Jiabilities
Due to banks 2,032,247 - - 2,032,297 - 2,032,297
Accounts payable and other

liabifities 660,291 4,610,727 5,608,782 10,780,800 2,891,085 13,671,885
Term loans - 4,207,202 5,619,715 9,728,917 9,242470 18,969,387
Murabaha payables - 573,303 3,393,478 3,966,781 8,738,822 12,705,603
Provision for employees' end

of service benefits - - - - 1,481,816 1,481,816

2,692,588 9,391,232 14,422,975 26,506,795 22,354,193 43,860,988

31 December 2018
Financial llabilities

Due to banks 4,231,019 - - 4,231.018 - 4,231,019
Accounts payable and other
lizbilitizs 448,581 544093 3,065,620 4,158,294 2,891,084 7,049,378
Term loans - 1,078,220 4,182,680 5,160,880 13,840,030 19,000,810
Murabaha payables - 112,625 781,580 894,205 3,829,250 4,723,455
Provision for employses' end
of service benefits - - - - 1,369,578 1,369,578
4,679,600 1,834,938 7,928 860 14,444,398 21,929,942 36,374,340

35 Fair value measurement

351  Fair value hierarchy
Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an ordedy
transaction between market participants at the measugement date.

Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position are
Grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

* Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
tdentical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset or liability, cither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

*+ Level 3 fair value measurements ate those detived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or iability that are not based on observable marker data (unobservable mputs).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

35 Fair value measurement (continued)

35,2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position may also be categorised as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2019 2018

Kb KD
Financial assets:
At amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,898,924 10,374,053
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,577,267 -
Instaliments credit debtors 4,128,653 7,904,355
Accounts receivable and other assets 4,968,961 4,191,835
Af fair value:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14,504,859 9,847,774
Financigat assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 66,501,483 76,596,937
Total 100,580,147 108,814,854
Financial liabilities:
At amortised cost:
Due to banks 1,930,923 4,019,970
Accounts payable and other liabilities 13,671,885 7,048,378
Term loans 17,974,500 17,880,000
Murabaha payables 12,128,870 4,469,119
Frovision for employees' end of service benefits 1,481,816 1,389,578
Total 47,187,794 34,788,045

The level within which the finaneial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of

significant input to the fair value measutement.

The financial assets and lizbilities measured at fait value on a recutring basis in the consolidated statement of

financial position arc Grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2019

Level 1 lL.eve| 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
crloss:
Local quoted shares 816,860 816,860
Foreign guoted shares 348,388 - 348,388
Investment in managed portfolics 10,635,479 - - 10,635,479
Foreign unquoted shares - - 2,115,357 2,115,357
Invesiment fund 588,775 - 588,775
Financial assets at fair vatue through other
comprehensive income:
Local guoled shares 4,134,661 - - 4,134,661
local unguoted shares - - 12,679,879 12,679,879
Foreign unquoted shares - - 39,869,688 39,869,688
Investment in managed portfolios 7,076,658 - - 7,076,658
Debit instruments - - 2,641,946 2,641,946
Invesiment funds - 98,651 - 98,651
23,012,045 687,426 57,306,870 81,006,342
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35  Fair value measurement (continued)

35.2  Fair value measurement of financial insttuments {continued)

31 December 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
orloss:

Local quoted shares 929,905 - - 929,905
Foreign quoted shares 221427 - - 221,427
Investment in managed portfolios 6,688,246 - - 6,698,245

- - 1,998,196 1,898,196

Foreign unquoted shares

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income
l.acal quoted shares 5,146,205 - - 5,146,205
Local unguoted shares - - 13,325,654 13,325 654

Foreign unquoted shares - 28,881,411 28,981 411

Investment in managed portfolios 11,061,990 - 11.214,000 22,275,990
Debt instruments - - 6,618 848 6,618,848
Investment funds - 248 739 - 248,739

24,057,863 248,738 62,138,109 86,444,711

There have been no transfers between levels during the reporting period.

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value measurement
of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the inter-relationship between key unobsetvable nputs
and fair vatue, are set out below.

Financial assets in level 3:

The Group’s finance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair values, in consultation with third party valuation specialists for complex valuations, where required.
Valuation techaiques are selected based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the overall objective of
maximising the use of market-based information.

The valuation techniques used for instraments categorised in Levels 2 and 3 are desctibed belows

a) Unquoted equity securities are valued using cash flow projections based on financial estimates approved by
senior management. The growth ratcs used to artive at the terminal value tanged from 2,5%. Further the
revenue growth projections ate based on the assessment of the fatare business growth.

Key assumptions used in fir value calontations

The calculation of fair value is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
® Discount rates;
* Growth rares used to extrapolate cash Aows beyond the budget period;
* Local inflation rates,

Discount rates
Discount rates are calculated by using 1isk free rate, equity market risk premium, bets factor and company

specific risk premium (alpha factor).
Market share assumptions

These assumptions, as well as use of industry data for growth rates, are impottant as the entity’s relative position
to its competitors might change over the budget period.
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35 Fair value measurement (continued)
352 Fair value measurement of financial instruments {continued)

Projected growth rates and lowal inflatéon rates
Assumptions are based on references from published industry reseasch reports.

b) Investments in funds have been valued based on Net Asset Value (NAV) of the fund provided by the fund
manager.

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not change
significantly amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, total assets, total liabilities ot
total equity.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year,

Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs
that are not based on observable market data. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled from
beginning to ending balances as follows:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2019 2018

KD KD
Opening balance 62,138,109 48,950,664
Change in fair value 819,191 {976,440)
Sales (31,403,471) (2,893,542)
Purchases 27,601,345 17,048,427
Impairment of financial assets at FVTOCI {1,848,304) -
Closing balance 57,306,870 62,138,109

Noun-financial instraments
[nvestment properties were fair valued at 31 December 2019 and ate classified under level 3 fair value hierarchy
and reconciliation is provided in note 20.

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of non-financial assets:

Fair value of investment properties were determined using Mark to Market method, conducted by valuarers
considering transaction prices of the property and similar properties. The significant unobservable valuation
input used for the purpose of valuation is the market price per square foot / meter and varies from property
to property. A reasonable change in this input would result in an equivalent amount of change in fair value.

36 Capital risk management
The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide adequate return to its sharcholders through the optimisation of the capital structure.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions
and risk characteristics of the wnderlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital steucture, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders, issuc new shares or
sell assets 1o reduce debt.
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36 Capital risk management (continued)
The capital structure of the Group consists of the following;
31 Dec. 31 Bec.
2118 2018
KD KD

Due to banks (nhote 22) 1,930,023 4,019,870
Term loans (note 24) 17,974,500 17,880,000
Murabaha payables (note 26) 12,128,670 4,469,119
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 12.1) (7.898,924) (10,374,053}
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 12.2) (2,577,267} -
Net dabt 21,557,902 15,995,036
Equity 108,480,119 119,080,805
Met debt to equily ratio ' 19.87% 13.43%

37 Capital commitments
At the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group had capital commitments amounting
to KID282,396 (or real estate under development.

38 Division of the Parent Company

During the year, the Parent Company's Board of Directors approved a proposal for the division of the Parent
Company Into two companies by transferring assets from the Parent Company to the new company. The Pacent
Company will continue to conduct all of its cutreat activities and the activity of the new company will be of 2
holding company. On division, cach shareholder of the Parent Company will receive a shate in the new
C()mp:my.

On 7 November 2019, the Directors’ suggested alternatives in respect of the division have been discussed and
1t approved a proposal to decrease the share capital from IKD80 million to KID29 million through a disteibution
of shares of a subsidiary to the shareholders of the Parent Company. Therefore, a request was submitted to the

CMA for approval.

Subsequent to the reporting date, on 19 February 2020, the CMA indicated that after it had studied extensively
the request submitted by the Parent Company, it had concluded that the transaction, in terms of legal adoption
and technical procedure, is not 2 reduction of the share capital in cxcess of the need, and that the closest
description appropriate to it in the form and content is a "Division”, and that the CMA is currently working to
prepare rules for companies division. Based on the foregoing, the CMA is unable to appraove the Parent
(.ompany’s request to reduce the share capital, for the reasons mentioned above. Accordingly, the ransaction
will be postponed untl the CMA completes preparing the rules.

As of the reporting date, no effect of the above has been recognised in these consolidated financial
statements.

39 Subsequent events

Subsequent to reporting date on 11 March 2020, the World Flealth Organization chamctetised Viros Covid-19
as a pandemic, negatively impacting global markets, including Kuwait Stock Market (Boursa) which declined
over 24% upto end of March 2020 disrupting supply chains, and changing social behaviour, It is uncertain if
Covid-19 will continue disrupting global markets and what impact it will have on the Group’s operation. As
the situation is fluid and rapidly evolving, the Group do not consider it practicable to provide a quantitative
estimate of the potential impact of this outbreak on the Group.
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